ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. 	 The Respondent's Crashing His Car to Avoid Two Deer Was Properly 
Considered as Evidence of Intoxication. 

II. 	 The Odor of Alcohol on the Respondent's Breath Was an Indicator of 
Impairment. 

ID. 	 The Respondent's Bloodshot, Glassy Eyes Were an Indicator of Impairment. 

IV. 	 The Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus Test Was Properly Administered and Should 
Have Been Given Weight. 

v. 	 The Preliminary Breath Test Should Have Been Given Weight. 

VI. 	 The Result of .109 on the Intoximeter Provides Per Se Evidence of 
Impairment and Was Improperly Excluded. 

VII. 	 The Circuit Court Abused its Discretion. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On December 24, 2010, Deputy Branden Brooks of the Ohio County Sheriff's Department 

(hereinafter, the "Investigating Officer") was dispatched to an automobile crash on Route 88 in Ohio 

County, West Virginia. Appendix Record at 109,257,278 (hereinafter, "A.R. at_"). The crash was 

reported at 3:23 a.m. A.R. at 114. Upon arrival at 3:36 a.m., he found the Respondent standing by 

his truck, which was lying on the driver's side by the road. A.R. at 109,257,278-79,293. The 

Investigating Officer asked him how he rolled his vehicle, and the Respondent stated that two deer 

jumped out in front ofhim and he swerved, went up on a hillside and slowly rolled to the side. A.R. 

at 115,262. The Respondent declined medical attention. A.R. at 262. The Respondent testified that 

he "swerved and put on his brakes," (A.R. at 376), but there were no skidmarks on the road. A.R. 

at 116, 404-05. 
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The Respondent testified that the Investigating Officer said to him, "You seem fine to me, 

but let's make sure." A.R. at 382; the Investigating Officer denied that he said that. A.R. at 403. 

While talking with Respondent, the Investigating Officer noticed the odor of an alcoholic 

beverage on his breath and observed that his eyes were bloodshot and glassy. The Respondent 

advised the Investigating Officer that he was drinking beer earlier and had not eaten. A.R. at 110, 

263, 280. At the administrative hearing, the Respondent testified that he drank: five or six beers 

between 8:30 p.m. and midnight on the day before the arrest while watching a Pittsburgh Steelers 

game. A.R. at 374. 

The Investigating Officer asked the Respondent if he had any medical conditions which 

would keep him from performing field sobriety tests, and the Respondent answered no. A.R. at 263. 

The Investigating Officer, who was trained to administer field sobriety tests and certified on August 

22,2008, commenced to perform field sobriety tests on the Petitioner. A.R. at 263-64. 

The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the walk-and-turn test to the 

Respondent. The Respondent missed heel-to-toe. A.R. at 110, 264. 

The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the one-Ieg-stand test to the 

Respondent. While performing the one-leg-stand test, Respondent swayed while balancing. A.R. at 

111,264. 

The Investigating Officer then explained and administered the horizontal gaze nystagmus 

("RON") test to Respondent. The Respondent had equal pupils, no resting nystagmus and equal 

tracking. Both of his eyes showed a lack of smooth pursuit and displayed distinct and sustained 

nystagmus at maximum deviation. Ris left eye exhibited the onset of nystagmus prior to an angle 

of 45 degrees. A. R. At 110, 265. These clues indicate impairment. 
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The Investigating Officer had reasonable grounds to believe the Respondent had been driving 

under the influence ofalcohol ("DUI") and asked him to submit to a preliminary breath test ("PBT"). 

The Investigating Officer was trained and certified to perform this test at the West Virginia State 

Police Academy on August 22,2008. He used an individual disposable mouthpiece. The test was 

administered at 3:49 a.m. The result of the PBT showed that the Respondent had a blood alcohol 

content of .111. AR. at 111, 266-68. 

The Investigating Officer placed the Respondent under arrest at 3:53 a.m. and transported 

him to the Ohio County Sheriffs Office, where he administered the ,secondary chemical test of the 

breath. A R. at 268. The Investigating Officer has been trained and certified to operate the 

Intoximeter since August 22,2008. AR. at 112, 27l. 

The Investigating Officer read the Implied Consent Statement to the Respondent and gave 

him a copy. A.R. at 112, 270. The Respondent signed the Implied Consent Statement at 4:13 a.m. 

AR. at 122. 

The Investigating Officer observed the Respondent for 20 minutes to ensure that he did not 

ingest food, drink or foreign matter in his mouth. A.R. at112, 268-69. The Intoximeter was working 

properly. AR. at 112, 272. At 4:48 a.m., the Respondent provided a breath sample which showed 

that his blood alcohol concentration level was one hundred nine thousandths ofone percent (.109), 

by weight. AR. at 112,108, 272. 

In a post-arrest interview, the Respondent admitted that he was driving on Route 88; that he 

had drunk five or six beers earlier; and that he takes Zoloft. A.R. at 113, 270-71. He admitted at the 

hearing that he had drunk five or six beers that night. A.R. at 373,392. 
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The Respondent's privilege to drive was revoked for DUI by an initial order of revocation 

dated January 20,2011. A.R. at 77. 

An administrative hearing was timely requested (A.R. at 72-75), convened on May 29, 2015 

(A.R. at 248-310) and concluded on September 11, 2015. A. R. at 311-427. A Final Order was 

issued by the Office ofAdministrative Hearings ("OAR") on January 19, 2017, which affirmed the 

revocation ofRespondent's driver's license. A. R. at 453-460. 

On January 26, 2017, the Respon.dent, by counsel, filed a Petition for Judicial Review in the 

circuit court of Ohio County. A. R. at 466. The circuit court entered a Final Order on August 17, 

2017 reversing the OAR's order. A.R. at 1-12. 

, 
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The circuit court abused its discretion and substituted its judgment for that ofthe OAR: the 

circuit court found that there was no evidence in this case which warranted an arrest. A.R. at 8. 

Rather than performing its duty to determine whether there was substantial evidence to support the 

OAR's Final Order, the circuit court systematically discounted every piece of evidence of 

impairment. 

The circuit court even excluded the result of the Intoximeter, which showed that the 

Respondent had a blood alcohol content of .109, because ''The NHTSA standard applicable at the 

time ofMr. Winesburg's arrest expressly provides that the 'weight of the chemical test evidence is 

presumptive ofalcohol influence, not conclusive. '[citation to NHTSA Manual omitted]." The court 

ignored the fact that the statute in effect at the time of arrest provided, "If the Office of 

Administrative Hearings finds by a preponderance ofthe evidence that the person did drive a motor 

vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, controlled substances or drugs, or did drive a motor 
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vehicle while having an alcohol concentration in the person's blood of eight hundredths of one 

percent or more, by weight, but less than fifteen hundredths of one percent or more, by weight, ... 

the commissioner shall revoke the person's license for a period of six months or a period of fifteen 

days with an additional one hundred and twenty days ofparticipation in the Motor Vehicle Alcohol 

Test and Lock Program ... " W. Va. Code § 17C-5A-2G). See also, W.Va. Code § 17C-5-8(a)(3). 

Driving with a blood alcohol content over .08 is a per se violation ofthe laws against driving under 

the influence ofalcohol. Intoxication need not be proven in the presence ofaper seviolation, which 

shows the court's reasoning that "all other evidence overwhelmingly establishing that he was not 

under the influence of alcohol" (A.R. at 11) to be a clear abuse of discretion. 

The court began by finding that swerving offthe road to avoid two deer was not evidence of 

impairment, although the Investigating Officer testified that some drivers can slow down or stop 

when approaching a deer, inferring that the Respondent's intoxicated state may have been a 

contributing factor. 

The circuit court noted that the odor of alcohol on a person's breath is not necessarily an 

indicator of impairment pursuant to Federoffv. Rutledge, 175 W. Va. 398, 332 S.E.2d 855 (1985), 

that there may be an odor of alcohol in a nonintoxicated person, and it is not illegal to drink: and 

drive. The court thereby dispensed with the actual evidence that the Respondent had the odor of 

alcohol(for which the Respondent offered no other explanation) and admitted to consuming five or 

six beers earlier. 

The circuit court also excluded the evidence of the Respondent's bloodshot, glassy eyes 

because it was cold outside. A.R. at 7. 
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The circuit court also focused on the HGN test because the Investigating Officer could not 

state with certainty whether he had perfonned it precisely m accordance with NHTSA guidelmes. 

A.R. at 9. Because the court was on its way to excludmg every piece ofmculpatory evidence, it took 

pains to pomt out that there was no pomt in giving the HGN the weight it deserved (Dale v. Oakland, 

234 W.Va. 106,763 S.E.2d434 (2014)) because it would be the only piece ofmculpatoryevidence, 

and a court cannot rely only on the HGN to uphold a revocation. A driver's license cannot be 

administratively revoked "solely and exclusively on the results of the driver's horizontal gaze 

nystagmus test," citing White v. Miller, 228, W. Va. 797, 724 S.E.2d 768 (2012). 

The circuit court then improperly excluded the PBT result on the erroneous basis that the 

Investigating Officer ''failed to comply with the fifteen (15) minute waitmg period." A.R. at 10. The 

Respondent testified that he did not smoke or consume alcohol m the hour that he waited for the 

Investigatmg Officer to arrive (A.R. at 377-78); therefore, it is clear that the Respondent did not 

smoke or consume alcohol m the two minutes before the Investigating Officer arrived. 

The circuit court improperly and systematically discounted each piece of evidence in its 

result-oriented Final Order, failed to assess the totality ofthe evidence, and substituted its judgment 

for that of the factfinder. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Argument pursuant to Rev. R.A.P Rule 19 is appropriate on the bases that this case mvolves 

assignments of error m the application of settled law and that this case mvolves a result against the 

weight of the evidence. 
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ARGUMENT 


I. 	 Standard of Review 

This Court's review of a circuit court's order deciding an administrative appeal is made 

pursuant to W. Va. Code § 29A-5--4(a)(1998). The Court reviews questions oflaw presented de 

novo; and findings offact by the administrative officer are accorded deference unless the reviewing 

court believes the findings to be clearly wrong. Reed v. Hall, 235 W. Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 666 

(2015). "In cases where the circuit court has [reversed] the result before the administrative agency, 

this Court reviews the final order of the circuit court and the ultimate disposition by it of an 

administrative law case under an abuse ofdiscretion standard and reviews questions oflaw de novo." 

Syl. Pt. 2, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

ll. 	 The Respondent's Crashing His Car to Avoid Two Deer Was Evidence of 
Intoxication. 

The circuit court discounted the circumstances of the Respondent's crash ofhis vehicle as 

"plausible" and "not reflective of impairment." A.R. at 6. However, the road was lighted and dry. 

A.R. at 114. The Investigating Officer, who could not affirmatively contradict the Respondent's story 

that he swerved to miss two deer, found it questionable that the Respondent crashed: when asked 

whether someone colliding with a deer had any bearing on whether the person was intoxicated, the 

Investigating Officer answered, "Well, I mean, to me that's debatable. If a deer is standing in the 

middle ofthe road and someone had time to see it and slow down or stop." A.R. a 283. (Conversely, 

the Investigating Officer agreed that a nonintoxicated deer may be struck by a car. A.R. at 283, lines 

18-20.) 
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The Respondent's erratic driving is evidence of his impairment. In State ex reI. State v. 

Gustke, 205 W. Va. 72, 516 S.E.2d 283 (1999), this Court found that a car that was "driven 

erratically and weaving from lane to lane" lead the Court to find that "it is reasonable to conclude 

that such erratic driving is sufficient probable cause to suspect that a driver is under the influence 

of alcohol or other controlled substances." 205 W. Va. 80, 516 S.E.2d 291. The Court later found, 

"1bis evidence of erratic driving does not go just to the issue of whether the traffic stop was 

justified; it is also evidence that Mr. Hill was driving while under the influence." Reed v. Hill,235 

W. Va. 1, 11, 770 S.E.2d 501, 511 (2015).Taken together with the totality of the other evidence of 

Respondent's impairment, the Respondent's crashing his vehicle is an indicator ofhis impairment. 

The circuit court's exclusion of this evidence demonstrates its abdication of its duty to determine 

whether the evidence on the record as a whole supports the OAR's Final Order. 

m. 	 The Odor of Alcohol on the Respondent's Breath Was an Indicator of 
Impairment. 

The circuit court excluded the evidence of the odor of alcohol on the Respondent's breath 

on the grounds that odor is not indicative ofper se impainnent; an odor can exist in the absence of 

intoxication; and it is not illegal to drink and drive. A.R. at 7. While these statements may be true 

in a vacuum, they do not contradict the evidence that the Respondent, who admitted to drinking five 

or six beers, had the odor of alcohol on his breath. It was improper for the Court to discount this 

evidence. 

IV. 	 The Respondent's Bloodshot, Glassy Eyes Were Indicators of Impairment. 

The circuit court excluded the evidence ofRespondent's bloodshot, glassy eyes because it 

was cold outside and the Respondent was tired because it was after 3 :00 a.m. Once again the court 
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refused to view the evidence as a whole to determine ifthe OAR's Final Order was supported by the 

record. "'When evaluating whether or not particular facts establish reasonable suspicion, one must 

examine the totality of the circumstances, which includes both the quantity and quality of the 

information known by the police.' Syllabus point 2, State v. Stuart, 192 W.Va. at 429,452 S.E.2d 

at 887." Syl. Pt. 4., Muscatel! v. Cline, 196 W. Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

The court refused to consider that bloodshot, glassy eyes are frequently indicators of 

impairment, as they were in this case. "[T]he DMV properly considered the test results, along with 

the testimony by Deputy Fleming regarding the smell ofan alcoholic beverage on the appellee, his 

observations that he had bloodshot and glassy eyes, slurred speech, and the fact that he was unsteady 

on his feet, in its decision to revoke the appellee's driver's license." Lowe v. Cicchirillo, 223 W. Va. 

175, 181,672 S.E.2d 311,317 (2008). "A driver's license to operate a motor vehicle in this State 

cannot be administratively revoked solely and exclusively on the results of the driver's horizontal 

gaze nystagmus test. Rather, additional evidence in conjunction with the horizontal gaze nystagmus 

test is required for revocation: for example, the results ofother field sobriety tests; the results of a 

secondary chemical test; whether the vehicle was weaving on the highway; whether the driver 

admitted consuming an alcoholic beverage; whether the driver exhibited glassy eyes or slurred 

speech; andlor whether the odor ofan alcoholic beverage was detected." Syl. Pt. 3, White v. Miller, 

228 W.Va. 797, 724 S.E.2d 768 (2012)." Syl. Pt. 3, Reed v. Hill, 235 W. Va. 1, 770 S.E.2d 501 

(2015). 

V. 	 The Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus Test Was Properly Administered and Should 
Have Been Given Weight. 

The circuit court excluded the results ofthe HGN test because "even Dep. Brooks admitted 
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that he could not state that the test was given properly." A.R. at 9. The Investigating Officer did not 

concede that he administered the test improperly and found that the evidence regarding the results 

of the HON test was valid despite the defense's attempt to get the Investigating Officer to concede 

that he did not perform the test correctly. 

This Court has recognized that field sobriety test results can establish probable cause for an 

arrest, and requisite proof to demonstrate driving under the influence ofalcohol. Hill v. Cline, 193 

W. Va. 436, 457 S.E.2d 113 (1995); Boley v. Cline, 193 W. Va. 311,456 S.E.2d 38 (1995) (per 

curiam); Dean v. West Virginia Dept. ofMotor Vehicles, 195 W.Va. 70, 464 S.E.2d 589 (1995). 

According to the Boley Court, a driver's "failure to satisfactorily complete field sobriety tests, 

including the horizontal gaze nystagmus test, sufficiently warranted a police officer 'inbelieving that 

the appellant was driving under the influence of alcohol.'" Boley, 193 W. Va. at 314, 456 S.E.2d 

at 41 (quoting Cunningham v. Bechtold, 186 W. Va. 474, 478, 413 S.E.2d 129, 133 (1991) (per 

curiam)). In Boley, the Court upheld a revocation on the strength ofweaving while driving, the odor 

ofbeer coming from the driver, and the results of a horizontal gaze nystagmus test of the driver's 

one good eye. In West Virginia Division ofMotor Vehicles v. Cline, 188 W. Va. 273,423 S.E.2d 

882 (1992) (per curiam), the Court upheld the revocation upon the arresting officer's testimony that 

upon stopping the appellee, he smelled alcohol and the appellee flunked two sobriety field tests. See, 

White v. Miller, 228 W. Va. 797, 724 S.E.2d 768: "Moreover, theHGN evidence was not an isolated 

factor in the administrative revocation ofWhite's license. As inDean andBoley, supra, other factors 

were present, such as, in this case, the other field sobriety tests and the admission ofWhite that he 

had consumed an alcoholic beverage." 228 W. Va. 797, 806-807, 724 S.E.2d 768, 777-778. 

In case law to date, revocations have been upheld on officers' testimony regarding the results 
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of the tests, as a purely factual matter. Cunningham, supra; Hill, supra; Hinerman v. West Virginia 

Dept. of Motor Vehicles, 189 W. Va. 353,431 S.E.2d 692 (1993)(per curiam); Simon v. West 

Virginia Dept. ofMotor Vehicles, 181 W. Va. 267, 382 S.E.2d 320 (1989); Carte v. Cline, 200 W. 

Va. 162,488 S.E.2d 437 (1997). 

F or purposes ofadministrative license revocation proceedings, where no jury is involved, the 

burden ofproof is different, and evidentiary standards are relaxed; evidence of the test contained in 

the Respondent's file is admissible; and further evidence from the officer and the driver, if offered, 

go to the weight, not admissibility, ofthe evidence. Deviations from a training manual may be proper 

fodder for cross examination but do -not justify excluding the HGN evidence. 

In West Virginia, there is no requirement that evidence of field sobriety tests be excluded if 

there is not strict adherence to National Highway Transportation and Safety Administration 

(''NHTSA'') guidelines. NHTSA standards are a guide for optimum administration offield sobriety 

tests (including optimum field conditions, which rarely exist). There is nothing in statutory or case 

law in West Virginia that mandates a circumscribed standard for laying a proper foundation for 

admission of results of field sobriety tests into evidence. NHTSA studies are a guide, and troopers 

and other officers are trained in administration of field sobriety tests and how to judge the results 

thereof, and in case law to date, revocations have been upheld on officers' testimony regarding the 

results of the tests. 

The Investigating Officer's testimony, even independent of the DUI Infonnation Sheet, was 

sufficient to support the OAR Hearing Examiner's findings of fact and conclusions oflaw. In this 

regard, the Hearing Examiner specifically found the Investigating Officer's testimony to be credible 

and the Respondent's testimony, in relevant part, not to be credible. "Our cases have 'recognized that 
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credibility detenninations by the finder of fact in an administrative proceeding are binding unless 

patently without basis in the record.' Webb v. West Virginia Bd. ofMedicine, 212 w. Va. 149, 156, 

569 S.E.2d 225, 232 (2002) (internal quotations cmd citation omitted). That is, '[cJredibility 

detenninations made by an administrative law judge are ... entitled to deference.' S yl. pt. 1, in part, 

Cahill v. Mercer Cnty. Bd. ofEduc., 208 W.Va. 177,539 S.E.2d 437 (2000)." Dale v. McCormick, 

231 W. Va. 628, 635, 749 S.E.2d 227, 234 (2013). 

Importantly, the Investigating Officer did not admit that he administered the test improperly: 

when repeatedly pressed about whether he made one or two passes for each phase of the test, he 

could not recall. "I don't recall ifI did do it again or ifIjust did it that one time for both eyes." A.R. 

at 328. "Again, I don't recall how many times I've done each eye. To testify to the best of my 

knowledge (inaudible)." A.R. at 335. 

This response is consistent with West Virginia case law that any deviation from the standards 

set forth by NHTSA goes to the weight of the test's evidence, not to its admissibility. The preface 

to the NHTSA manual states as follows:

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