I. INTRODUCflON 

This Summary Response is filed on behalf of Respondent, Joseph M. Wmesburg, 

pursuant to Rule 16 (h), W. Va. Rev. R. App. P. and this Court's Scheduling Order of 

October 4, 2017. The Petitioner's assignments of error are addressed in turn. 

II. ARGUMENT1 

1). Whether Respondent enduring an automobile accident in order to avoid 
crashing into a deer with his car was evidence of intoxication. 

Petitioner's first argument in favor of reversal of this circuit court's order centers 

on her contention that the circuit court "discounted" the circumstances surrounding the 

crash of Respondent's vehicle as not being per se reflective of impairment.2 See 

Petitioner's Briefat p. 7. Petitioner goes on to suggest that Petitioner's "erratic driving" 

is indicative ofhis impairment and relies upon this Court's authority in, inter alia, State 

ex reI. State v. Gustke, 205 W. Va. 72,516 S.E.2d 283 (1999), as support for that 

proposition. Id. at p. 8. 

However, this argument, and the authorities relied upon by Respondent are 

entirely distinguishable from the matter at Bar. Petitioner fails to note that Gustke 

1 Respondent acknowledges and agrees with both the standard of review applicable to a 
circuit court's review of decisions of an administrative agency and the standard of review 
that applies to this Court's review of a circuit court's reversal of such an agency as set 
forth by Petitioner in her Brief at p. 7. See, respectively, Reed v. Hill, 235 W. Va. 322, 
773 S.E.2d 666 (2015), and Syl.Pt. 2, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W. Va. 588, 474 S.E.2d 518 
(1996). 
2 This assertion by the circuit court does not contradict any finding of the hearing 
examiner from the Office ofAdministrative Hearings ("OAR") assigned to hear the case. 
The OAH hearing examiner effectively sidestepped the issue entirely by implicitly 
acknowledging the evidence developed at the hearing relative to the circumstances of the 
crash and then failing to take a position on the question. See Appendix (" App.") at p. 
456. 
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involved a law enforcement officer actually observing the suspect's vehicle weaving 

erratically. 205 W. Va. at 75,516 S.E.2d at 286. Similarly, Reed v. Hill involved an 

officer being nearly hit head on by the suspect vehicle. 235 W. Va. 1, 5, 770 S.E.2d 501, 

505 (2015). In the instant matter, no one observed Respondent swerve to avoid 

colliding with a deer. The arresting officer conceded that he was in possession of no 

facts to contradict Respondent's contention that he swerved to avoid hitting a deer. App. 

at pp. 280-281. In fact, the arresting officer acknowledged that it is not uncommon for 

individuals to collide with deer in rural areas of Ohio County similar to where 

Respondent encountered the deer he served to avoid. Id. 

Petitioner's contention to the contrary, the circuit court did not fail to discount 

this evidence. Rather, the circuit court acknowledged Respondent's undisputed, 

uncontradicted, unrebutted evidence that he swerved to avoid a deer as having no 

bearing on the question of whether he was driving under the influence. 

2). Whether the circuit court erred in giving little evidentiary weight to 
Respondent's "drinker's breath" on the question of impairment. 

Petitioner asserts that the circuit court erred in concluding that the OAR hearing 

examiner, in turn, erred in concluding that the odor of alcohol on Respondent's breath is 

evidence ofimpairment. However, even as the arresting officer acknowledged, 

"drinker's breath" is notper se evidence of impairment; rather, it is evidence only that 

an individual has consumed alcoholic beverages. App. at pp. 285-286. This conclusion 

is entirely consonant with this Court's prior pronouncement on the subject. Federoff 

v. Rutledge, fn. 1, 175 W. Va. 389, fn. 1,332 S.E.2d 855 (1985) citing 4 R Gray, M.D. & 

L. Gordy, M.D., L.L.B., Attorneys' Textbook of Medicine § 133.10 (3rd ed. 1985), 
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addressing the poor correlation between "drinker's breath" and impairment. Federoffis, 

of course, consistent with authorities from other jurisdictions holding similarly. See, 

e.g., State v. Taylor, 444 N.E.2d 481, 482 (Ohio App. 1981) ("The mere odor of alcohol 

about a driver's person, not even characterized by such customary adjectives as 

"pervasive" or "strong," may be indicia of alcohol ingestion, but is no more probable 

indication of intoxication than eating a meal is of gluttony ... the law prohibits drunken 

driving, not driving after a drink."); Saucier v. State, 869 P.2d 483 (Ak. 1994). 

3). Whether the circuit court erred in excluding evidence of Respondent's 
bloodshot, glassy eyes as indicators of impairment. 

Petitioner next chides the circuit court for discounting Respondent's purportedly 

bloodshot, glassy eyes, concluding that the circuit court refused to view the record as a 

whole to determine whether the final order of revocation was sustainable. See 

Petitioner's Briefat pp. 8-9. However, the circuit court properly noted that the arresting 

officer himself acknowledged that a myriad of innocuous, innocent reasons can account 

for red, glassy eyes, including standing in cold weather conditions and fatigue, and 

Respondent was standing in the cold after 3:00 a.m. when first encountered by the 

arresting officer. App. at pp. 7; 287-292. 

Petitioner cites Lowe v. Cicchirillo, 223 W. Va. 175, 181, 672 S.E.2d 311,317 

(2008), for the proposition that DUI detection clues such as the odor of an alcoholic 

beverage, bloodshot, glassy eyes, slurred speech, and unsteadiness, when evaluated 

together, justify upholding an order of revocation. Respondent acknowledges this 

standard. 
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However, not noted by Petitioner was that Respondent's speech was normal and 

he was standing and walking normally, produced his information in a timely and orderly 

fashion, was polite, cooperative, and not acting in any manner in a way that would 

indicate that he was impaired. App. at pp. 353-354. Both Respondent and OAR 

effectively ignore these critical facts that properly fit into the mosaic of the entire arrest 

event, but the circuit court did not.3 

4). Whether the circuit court erred in concluding that the horizontal gaze 
nystagmus test was improperly administered and should have been discounted. 

Petitioner maintains the arresting officer did not concede that he failed to 

administer the horizontal gaze nystagmus ("HGN") test properly to Mr. Winesburg in 

the correct fashion, because he could not recall whether he made the requisite number of 

sweeps and holds respecting his measure for both lack of smooth pursuit and the onset 

of nystagmus prior to 45°. See Petitioner's Briefat pp. 9-13; App. at p. 334. 

The reality of the matter is that the arresting officer noted that, while he may have 

made the proper number of sweeps and holds, he could not state that it was more likely 

than not that he did so. Accordingly, he admitted that he could not state whether he 

administered the HGN to Mr. Winesburg in the correct fashion and that the benefit of 

the doubt as to whether he did so should go to Mr. Winesburg. App. 343-344. 

3 Also entirely ignored by Petitioner was Respondent's performance on the walk-and
turn ("WAT") and one-leg-stand ("018") structured field sobriety tests ("SFSTs"): he 
passed both. The OAR final order takes note of these facts, but, consistent with its 
standard approach of evaluating specific detection clues in a vacuum and not as part of a 
larger evidentiary picture, it discounted their value in its Final Order. App. at p. 456. 

4 



Petitioner then cites selectively to a portion of the 2006 edition of the National 

Highway Safety Administration's participant's manual (DWI Detection and 

Standardized Field Sobriety Testing Course) (hereinafter, "the NHTSA Manual"), 

suggesting that slight variations from ideal testing conditions in the administration of 

SFSTs (e.g. an inability to find a perfectly smooth surface during a roadside stop) does 

not render the tests invalid. See Petitioner's Briefat p. 12. What Petitioner fails to note, 

however, is the language from the NHTSA Manual that provides that "it's necessary to 

emphasize this validation [ofSFSTsJ applies only when the tests are 

administered in the prescribed standardized manner." NHTSA Manual at 

VIII-19. The arresting officer agreed with the NHTSA standard that SFST test validation 

only applies when the SFSTs are given in the prescribed, standardized manner, and if 

they are not, the test results are compromised. App. at p. 332-333.4 Such a proposition 

seems manifestly logical: how can one fail a test if the test is not given properly? 

To reach the conclusion advanced by Petitioner on this point, one that OAR 

obviously adopted, i.e., that the HGN results should count against Respondent even in 

the absence of evidence that the test was administered in conformity with the test 

requirements, renders the foregoing language from the NHTSA Manual, itself (and 

acknowledged by the arresting officer) utterly meaningless. Stated otherwise, Petitioner 

suggests that even if the tests were administered improperly, some form of general 

4 Chiding the circuit court for discounting the results of the HGN (and thereby seeking to 
justify OAR's embrace of the purportedly failing HGN results), Petitioner cites Dale v. 
McConnick, 749 S.E.2d 227, 232 (W. Va. 2013), for the proposition that deviations from 
the HGN testing procedure relate to the weight, not the admissibility ofthe test. This is 
an argument advanced from a false premise, inasmuch the circuit court did not conclude 
that OAR erred in admitting the HGN evidence; rather, the circuit court concluded that 
the OAR erred in extending meaningful evidentiary weight to a test that, by the deputy's 
own admission, may not have been administered properly. App. at p. 9. 
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compliance with test administration suffices to render them acceptable. In the world of 

the Division of Motor Vehicles ("DMV'), "close" would apply to not only horseshoes and 

hand-grenades, but HGN as well. If the tests are to really mean anything at all, they 

must be given properly, a fact that NHTSA, itself, acknowledges. The circuit court 

properly concluded that the HGN results should be discounted in the absence of 

evidence that they were administered properly and that OAR erred in extending to them 

evidentiary weight. 

5). Whether the circuit court erred in excluding evidence of an improperly 
administered preliminary breath test. 

Petitioner advances another argument muddying the issue of which party bears 

the burden of proof by suggesting that the circuit court erred in concluding that evidence 

of a preliminary breath test ("PBT") purportedly failed by Respondent should have been 

excluded. See Petitioner's Briefat pp. 13-14. Note that OAR excluded the PBT results as 

well. App. at p. 454. However, both the conclusion reached by the circuit court and by 

the OAR on this point reflect the what is required by the law. 

The PBT administered to Respondent was not offered in conformity with w. Va. 

Code § 17C-5-5, which provides, in relevant part, that " [a]ny preliminary breath analysis 

required under this section must be administered with a device and in a manner 

approved by the department ofhealth for that purpose." (Emphasis added). Pursuant 

to West Virginia C.S.R. § 64-10-5.2(a), the "law enforcement officer shall prohibit the 

person from drinking or smoking for at least fifteen minutes before conducting the 

[preliminary] breath test." (Emphasis added). See, too, NHTSA Manual (2006) atVII-8 

("It takes approximately 15 minutes for the residual alcohol to evaporate from the 
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mouth. The only sure way to eliminate this factor is to make sure the suspect does not 

take any alcohol for at least 15 to 20 minutes before conducting a breath test."). 

Respondent's purported failure of the PBT should not, and did not, count against him, as 

the officer did not ensure that Respondent did not ingest any alcohol or smoke in the 

fifteen (15) minutes preceding administration of the test. See Reed v. Hill, 235 W. Va. 1, 

8, 770 S.E.2d 501, 508 (2015). 

Petitioner engages in a clever form of semantic sophistry by implying that the 

absence of evidence that Respondent consumed alcohol or smoked in the fifteen (15) 

minutes prior to taking the tests suffices to render the test results admissible. See 

Petitioner's Briefat p. 14. This maddening and unfounded argument, repeatedly 

advanced by DMVs lawyers in OAR hearings throughout West Virginia, wholly 

misapprehends the party upon whom the burden of proof rests. It is the evidentiary 

proponent (here, the DMV) that must establish conformity with the test requirements, 

i.e. that the officer ensured no ingestion of alcohol or smoking within the specified time 

frame, in order to qualify the test results for admission into evidence. Otherwise, the 

language in W. Va. Code § 17C-5-5 and C.S.R. § 64-10-5.2(a) means nothing. 

6), Whether the circuit court erred in excluding evidence of the secondary 
chemical test reflecting a breath alcohol content of .109. 

Petitioner next argues that the circuit court erred by concluding that the results of 

the secondary chemical test, the Intoximeter EC/IR II, should have been excluded by 

OAR, as Respondent's failing result of .109 breath alcohol content ("BrAC") is per se 

evidence of impairment. Concededly, W. Va. Code § 17C-sA-2G) mandates revocation of 

an individual's operator's privileges if the results of the secondary chemical are in excess 
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of .08 BrAC, and there is no evidence to contradict that Respondent's BrAC was a .109 at 

the time that he took the test. As well, the circuit court found controlling the language 

that provides that the 

weight of the chemical test evidence is presumptive of alcohol influence, not 
conclusive. * * * "If there is no evidence to the contrary, the court may accept the 
legal presumption and conclude that the driver was or was not impaired on the 
basis of the chemical test alone. However, other evidence, such as testimony 
about the diver's appearance, behavior, or speech, for example, may be sufficient 
to overcome the weight of the chemical test. 

NHTSA Manual (2006) at 1II-3. (Emphasis added).5 

But the circuit court's analysis did not stop there, because the circuit court also 

concluded that Respondent was not lawfully arrested, and, therefore, any secondary 

chemical test was not lawfully administered. W. Va. Code § 17C-5-4(c) [2010] 

(secondary chemical test is administered incidental to a lawful arrest). App. at p. 8. 

While the circuit court's conclusions as advanced by Respondent may not reconcile with 

the foregoing provision of the Code, such musings are essentially surplusage given the 

circuit court's underlying conclusion that OAH erred in concluding that Respondent was 

unlawfully arrested given the quantum of evidence developed at the roadside by the 

arresting officer. Petitioner's Briefessentially ignores the findings and conclusions 

made by the circuit court on the question of the legality of Respondent's arrest. 

5 There is an apparent disparity between the NHTSA standard, which makes an 
allowance for an individual with a BrAc over .08 as being potentially not under the 
influence and the Code, which fails to make any such allowance. Stated in another 
fashion, the NHTSA standard properly and correctly recognizes that an individual with a 
BrAc over .08 may not be under the influence whereas the Code makes no such 
allowance. 
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7). The circuit court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that OAR erred in 
concluding that an insufficient quantum of evidence existed justifying Respondent's 
arrest. 

Relying on Syllabus Point 2, Albrecht v. State, 173 W. Va. 268, 314 S.E.2d 859 

(1984), Petitioner asserts that ample evidence on the question of Respondent's 

impairment existed in the record to sustain OAR's findings and conclusions upholding 

the underlying order of revocation. However, upon application of a clearly erroneous 

standard as to OAR's factual findings and a de novo standard of review on its legal 

conclusions, it is apparent that the circuit court correctly concluded that OAR erred in 

upholding the order of revocation. See, e.g., Charleston Area Medical Center, Inc. v. 

State Dept. afWest Virginia, 224 W. Va. 591, 595, 687 S.E.2d 374,378 (2009) (citation 

omitted) ("the clearly erroneous rule does not protect findings made on the basis of 

incorrect legal standards. "). 

Petitioner urges a holistic analysis ofthe evidentiary record, see Petitioner's Brief 

at pp. 16-18, and on this point, Respondent wholly agrees. The sum total of the 

evidence developed at the roadside (before the traffic stop was extended by the deputy) 

to substantiate a conclusion that Respondent was under the influence was the following: 

(a) the odor of an alcoholic beverage; and (2) red, glassy eyes.6 While it is true that a 

single car accident had occurred, a truthful explanation was offered by Respondent 

accounting for why he wrecked (he swerved to avoid colliding with a deer), and the

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